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ZCTICN I
INTRCIUCTI
The purpose of this report is to record in detail the acquisition

ond move of certain divisions of the OCAYA to the Cklahoma City Douglas

. . ~
Plant, which is loczted on the east bouncdary of the Governzent reserva-

o - v, . ~ 1 ms e AS g Teaye
tion in Cklzhoma County, Cklahomz, known a2s Tinker Air orce Zase.

C:""‘-"‘l*' ar II

AR A

In sugust of 1945, machinery was set in motion by the

AU TA

General of OCAMA whereby studles were made and recommenca

A committee consisting of
Colonel Carl J. Crane, 015936, USAF, - ‘aintenance
Colonel Willism R. Johnson, 0267796, USAF - Swurply

Colorel Joseph B. Jiskra, 0117111, Adjutent Ceneral's Cffice

Lt. Colonel Rzy S. Morgan, 0LCH315, USAT - Air Installations
was appointed by OCAMA, Headquarters, and Special Orders lo. 196, dated -
1 zust 1945, was issued directing this comaittee to study and submit

o

co_wrf‘nf cns as to the feasibility of adapting the Touglas aircrafit

buildings for use of this depot. Authority was granted this committee

to use any and all persornel of this command necessary to expedite this
study.




SECTICN III
VISITATICN

On Ausust 21 and 22, 1045, Benjamin W. Chidlaw, Major Cenerel,

USA, Tevuty Commanding Ceneral, Znginesering (-—} s atcompenied by .
Generel Isaac J. Ott visited the Douglas aircraft nlant for the purpose

erintendent of the Pouglas
Aircraft Corporation. The inspection included shop equivment, utilities,
layout, reil facilities, and grounds.

It was learned during this inspection that the present location of
the Douglas plant was arrived at as a result of careful orizinal plan-
ning by the Air Corps Site Zoard. The comittee was advised that cther
locations for the fectery had been conmsidered, such as Zethany, Cxlahoma,
but thet the board felt that there would be obvious advantages in locau—.
ing the factory in the close vicinity of Tinker Air Force Zase in order -
that it could utilized by the depot in the post-war Deriod. It was also

Lar

lexnred that the Douglas plant would 2dd approximately 2 5’2",000 square
Rl P app 4

s

feet of floor space to the present Tinker Air Force Dase area. The
Vaintenance Division at that time utilized approximately 1,183,000 square
feet. The acquisition of the Douglas plant provided additional space for
such orderly expansion as would be required in the event of an emergency
in the future. It was also considered after complete planning and trens-

fer to the Douglas plant, these facilities could be operated more effect-

ively and efficiently along modern lines than could now be accomplished

™




Yeadquarters, 4MC, viewed the Douglas building with the intention of
utilizing sections of this building for overhaul of 211 turbq.jet and

gas turbine engines. The committee was composed of

Colonel Paul RB. Jzcteon, Chief, “aintenance Pivisicn, CTAMA

MAYeR

T N A~ oo ey 0\ % | A3 ] e
Lt. Colonel 3Srown, Chief, Air Installations, CCANA
ey

~ - : m T A A May AL Yo a4 - - A}
Lt. Colonel A. T. Zconeny, “hief, iethods and Procsdures, OCAZA

Lt. Colonel John Hildabot,

‘ Eoeas B e e
¥Mr. V. J. yers, raintenance Division, Zeazdquarters, &L

Mr. F. Thurman, SPAVA
RN Mr. E. Iund, SRAMA

dre C. S. West, laintenance Division, OCAMA
The 250,000 square feet of floor space necessary for the overhaul,

-

storage of all 02Q parts, and storage for reparable and serviceable turbo

et and zas turbine engines would te aveilable in this building. The
location selected in the Tonglas aircraft btuilding would economically and -

easily lend itself to expansion when the jet overkeul program so justified.
SECTICN IV

ACHIEVEMENT

After meny excranges of letters and telephore conversations, auth-
ority was received from Teadquarters, AMC, directing this Command to

assume accountability by the deadline date of 15 March 19U6 for the

po-0




-3

property in the Oklahoma City Douglas Alrcraft Corpany plant which had
nated for retention by the faintensnce Division. Accountability

discrevancies to te adjusted

on

was to be assuzmed subject to spot check, an
m_me AT

2s inventory was actually accorplished. Authority, TT-TSGEH, dated 11

arch 1946, filed in the Adjutant General's Office, Tinker Air Force
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lant as of 0001,.1 ovember 1S45. Iumediately, the va:erty Section of

tre Air Installations Office btegen to incorporate the Douglas nlant on

the real property records of this Cormand.
It was tentatively decided that leintenance Division and the Head-

quarters Administrative Cffices wonld cccupy the Touglas plant. Tinker

Alr Torce Zase, CCAVYA, was desicnated accountable for standéby equirment
in letter fron Feadquarters, AVC, subject: "Transfer of Commend Juris-

diction," dated 5 Yovember 13U

us.
Mzintenance prepared a listing of equipment and material they would
need for the immediate futuw=e and ensuins years of post-war operstions.

Plans, T-5, prepared a listing of the requirements of the various sections

(/’)

(@]

f this Comrand. These requests were sutmitted to the .5.;3 Plant Repre-
centative, Douglas Aircraft Corporation, 27 November 1545. Plant Clear-
ance Cfﬁcials and Contractor Representatives honored these requests
and prepared proper shipring documents.

In Zpril 1546, a Touglas Move Committee was formed consisting of
Colonel D. B. Cullinane - Chairman

Lt. Colonel V. J. Brown, - Member

Captain J. D. McSweeney - Member

Lt. John F. Hohl - Member

w/0 J. Tyberse - lember

Ao




Captain He R. Underwood - Member

¥r. W. V. Gullette - Member
to manage, study, a2nd approve the varicus locations and requirements in
connection with the Touglas facilities move. A field office was estab-
lished and located at Column 0-65 in the Touglas tuilding shop area.

U8 o
-

Redmond was

[y
»

placed in charge of the fisld office.

Daily meetings were held by the love Comnittee until the move %o
the Douglas nlant was copleted. Three erchitectural draftsmen were as-
signed to meke necessary drawings required incidental to any moves. ¥r.
¥oerner from Air Installaticn Cffice,. AMC, was 2ssigrad to monitor
construction details and ¥r. Rinor, Tlectrical Fncineer from Wright
Tield, wes assigned to monitor electrical ins*tallatiofns. Three drafts-
men were assigned to the field office to measure and *;a*c equivment loca-

tions, floor pits, etc., from approved drawings.

The canteen was put into operation at Column S-67 and services w/e*e
expanded as required. It was necessary to completely renovate the main
cafeteria. .

First Aid in the Main DispeAnsary was put into opera:tion and addi-
tional First Aid Stations were activated as necessities required. -

Time clocks were installed on the east wall of the aircraft pro-
duction line to accommodate employees assigned to Area C.

The Tooms located in Lean-to 6 were cleared of all cafeteria fix-
tures and designated as the carburetor and fuel injection flow test
rooms. The activation of these rooms were held in suspense awaiting
specification plans from Wright Field.

The location desisnated Engire Disassembly and Cleaning, Columns

101 and 108 to A end M, was cleared, ard nreuaratlon of floor for the

50 2o
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installation of multiple stage wachers and floor conveyors were Tegun.

The lachine Shop Branch, Woodmill Brench, Aircraft Repair Section, Master

~y )

Gage Unit, Chemicel Iatoretory Unit, Equipment Services Eranch, Mainte-

™

nance Administrative offices were moved to the Douglas building during

by 1546. A complete schedule of laintenance move wes planrned as shown

LF4

.J

on Trzwing No. CE 1002-D attached.

Progress was accomplished as indicated on attached photeograchs,
dg.ued 8 Novembter 1346, showing percentege complete. Personnel were
moved to the Touglas vlant in accordance with the schedule as shown on
Drawirg CH 1001-G attached.

A total of 3£50,000 was allocated to defray expenses in moving,
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end instellaticn of equipment in the Touglas tuilding. A
1 194, %0, 000 addition=l vas
received 21 May 1946, and en additionsl $150,000 allotment was received
in July 1846, makinz a grend total of $650,000. $u16,313.76 was obli-
gated out of the 3650,000, and $416,818.42 was actually sp nt. The
balance of 3233,181,58 was returned as the result of cance 1ling several

jor projects that had previcusly been contemplated in com:ection with

E
g

the occupation of the Douglas aircraft vlant by CCAMA. (The above- -

figures were extracted from the records of the Budget and Tiscel Office,
Maintenance responsibilities of the Douglas plant was assumed by

Headguarters, OCAMA, on 28 Febmary 10M6 Simultaneousiy, Douglas was

released of all :nalntenahce responsiblities. Authority letter from

TSSREUB to Commanding Ceneral, OCAMA, dated 31 Jaruary 10U6, filed in

tﬁe Adjutant General's Office.
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Cn or atout My 1546, the move frcz Area A to the Douglas plent
. N - r o8 . 3 .
ves begum in earnest, and by Yovember 140, all divisions, section, and
branches were stable and in full operation.

All First Aid Staticns and the Main DPisvenszsry were taken over in-

tact by the Industrizl ledical Service, 1. e., equirment and fixtures i
cluding seme medical swrlies. Considersble meldicires were sold by Tougles

All fire fighting equipment including fire trucks, chemical carts, fire
extinguishers, stations, efc., were taken over intact by Alr Installations.
The cafeteria, litrary and ADT system were taken over intact.
The garage tuildirng and all installed equipment previously used b
the Dougles Company was occupied by the Station Motor Pool. Only minor
teraticns were required to make this btuilding conform to War Cepartment
standards. All guard facilities were taken over and adequate guards were

placed to safe grard effectively life and prorerty at the Douglas plant.

L]

Brigadier General F. S. ZBorum, present Commsnding Ceneral, OCAMA,
was the Commanding Ceneral preceding and during tke Couglas move. GCeneral
Borun was instrumental and respcnsible for the acquisition of the Pouglas
plant which is now a major part of Tinker Air Force Base.,

Colonel Carl J. Crane was, at the time of the Douglas move, Deputy
for Engineering, T—}. Fe was later relieved and is now in California.

Colonel Paul B. Jackson was Cl;ief, Maintenance  Division, preceding

and during the Douglas move. Colonel Jackson was originally assigned on

teg




the Adviscry Committee, later teing relieved and assizred to th
Douglas tove Workirng Cormittee.
Mhe Wareines Oammitt A4 A3 £3n
J-L‘e “O&r\l‘;& \/w.u.“lvuee “AG a ;Auue

despatch.

Twenty additional draftsmen composed of Cklehome Tniversity students

T I

trol, Inspecticn, and Aéministration, Maintenance, set up temporary
offices on the secornd flcor, Zuilding 210, later zoving to the Touglas
building along with Zeadquarters offices, after complete plamning and

allocaticn of offices had been mace.

SECTION VI
SUMMARY
The Douglas aircraft plant was planned and btuilt for expedient pro-
duction of C-47 aircraft urgently needed to prosecute the war effort and
with the view in mind of converting to depot use in the post-war pericd.
By converting the Douglas plant into the CCAMA activitles, it mde

possitle the establishment of one of the largest AMC Depots in the

B3
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